
1

City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA

Tuesday, July 2, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall

amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning Bylaw

No. 8000.

(b)All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed

bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written

submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this

hearing. This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form part

of the public record. A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by Castanet.

(c)All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received

concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.The

correspondence and petitions received after June 18, 2013 (date of notification) are

available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the

information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the

Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,

however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the



2

applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10852 (Z13-0013) - 1383 Ellis Street, 564913 BC Ltd. 5 - 14

This application seeks to rezone the subject property from I4 – Central
Business Industrial zone to C7 – Central Business Commercial, to facilitate
commercial uses within the existing building on site.

3.2 Land Use Contract Discharge LUC13-0001 - 381 Oakview Road, Don Bouwman 15 - 23

To consider a proposal to discharge the existing Land Use Contract over the
subject property in order to permit the development of an accessory building.

3.3 Bylaw No. 10856 (OCP13-0005), Bylaw No. 10857 (Z13-0006), Bylaw No. 10858
(OCP13-0005) and Bylaw No. 10859 (Z13-0006) - 1982 Kane Road and 1970-
1974 Kane Road, Raisanen Construction Ltd. and PC Urban (Brandt's Creek)
Holdings Corporation Inc.

24 - 48

This application seeks to rezone the subject lands at 1982 Kane Road from the
A1 – Agricultural zone to the C3 – Community Commercial, RM1 – Four Dwelling
Housing, RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, and RM5 – Medium Density
Multiple Housing zones, to facilitate Phase 2 of the existing Brandt’s Creek
Crossing retail shopping centre and future multi-family development. The
proposed zoning requires amendments to the existing Official Community Plan
(OCP) future land use designations, including expansion of the existing COMM -
Commercial and MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density)
designations. In conjunction with the subject applications, a minor correction
to the zoning and OCP future land use designation on the west adjacent
property at 1970-1974 Kane Road (Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1) is
proposed, to rezone a small portion of the northeast corner of the property
from the RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing zone to C3 – Community
Commercial, and to amend the future land use designation from MRM –
Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) to COMM – Commercial, consistent
with the balance of the property.

3.4 Bylaw No. 10854 (Z12-0006) - 587-589 Lawrence Avenue, Finnasha Holdings
Corp. Inc.

49 - 63



3

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property with the “Liquor
Primary” designation to allow for a new liquor primary license with a patron
capacity proposed at 250 people.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b) The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c) The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d) The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

(i) The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s) wishing
to make representation at the Hearing.

(ii) The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

(iii) Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if they
have additional information they may address Council again after all other members
of the public have been heard a first time.

(e) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an
opportunity to respond to any questions raised. The applicant is requested to keep
the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f) Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public Hearing
is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for



4

clarification.

(g) Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). Unless Council directs that the
Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to the
gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note: Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g. photographs,
sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions. The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available. Please ask staff for
assistance prior to your item if required.



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 22, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AR) 

Application: Z13-0013 Owner: 
564913 BC Ltd., Inc. No. 
564913 

Address: 1383 Ellis Street Applicant: 
Joseph Higgins, President, 
564913 BC Ltd. 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: I4 – Central Industrial  

Proposed Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0013 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 8, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 432, located at 1383 Ellis 
Street, Kelowna, BC from the I4 – Central Industrial zone to the C7 – Central Business Commercial 
zone, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the applicant’s April 30, 2013 Public Information Session to be 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined 
in the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated May 22, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered following provision of the 
nine (9) required parking spaces through registration of an off-site parking agreement on 1350 
Ellis Street in the Land Titles Office, to the satisfaction of the City of Kelowna;  
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subject to receipt of 
payment for a bicycle parking facility accommodating a minimum of four (4) bicycles; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 

5



Z13-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

This application seeks to rezone the subject property from I4 – Central Business Industrial zone to 
C7 – Central Business Commercial, to facilitate commercial uses within the existing building on 
site.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

The subject property is designated Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) in the Kelowna 2030 
Official Community Plan (OCP) and located in the Downtown Urban Centre. The proposal to 
rezone the subject property from the existing I4 – Central Business Industrial zone to the C7 – 
Central Business Commercial zone is consistent with the future land use designation, and is the 
appropriate zone for the Downtown.  

The proposed rezoning will enable the existing building to be re-used for commercial uses that 
are both appropriate for and consistent with the surrounding Downtown context. Given that the 
existing building is proposed to be retained at this point in time, staff is satisfied with the 
provision of additional, secured off-site parking to accommodate future commercial uses at 
1350 St. Paul Street (a short walking distance away at approximately 120 m), and with a 
contribution towards a future bicycle parking facility in this area of Ellis Street.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The purpose of this application is to rezone the subject property from I4 – Central Business 
Industrial zone to C7 – Central Business Commercial, to facilitate commercial uses within the 
existing building on site, consistent with the Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (OCP) future 
land use designation for the subject site of MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) and the 
surrounding downtown properties.  

Until recently, the building was the long-time location of Valley Canvas and Awning Ltd. The 
property owner is now seeking to rezone the property to the C7 zone to enable re-use of the 
existing building for commercial uses that are appropriate and consistent with the surrounding 
downtown context.  

Rezoning to the C7 zone imports a higher parking standard resulting in nine (9) required parking 
spaces for the subject site, an increase from the five (5) previously provided under the I4 zone. 
As the existing building is presently built entirely to property line, the applicant proposes to 
amend the existing off-site parking agreement registered on the property at 1350 St. Paul Street 
to accommodate the additional four (4) required parking spaces. On-site loading and employee 
bike parking can be accommodated within the existing building with access from the rear lane. 
Given the inability to accommodate accessible on-site bicycle parking for visitors on the subject 
site, the applicant is providing payment in lieu to be allocated towards future provision of City 
bicycle parking along this block of Ellis Street. As the existing building is proposed to be retained 
and no changes to the exterior are proposed at this time, no Development Permit is required.  

4.2 Site Context 

This 700 m2 site is located on Ellis Street in Kelowna’s Downtown Urban Centre, directly east of 
the Kelowna Branch of the Okanagan Regional Library and the Cultural District area. It is bound 
by The Madison development to the south and the future Monaco development to the east.  

  

6



Z13-0013 – Page 3 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business District Commercial (Kelowna Actors Studio) 

East C7 – Central Business District Vacant (future Monaco development) 

South C7 – Central Business District Mixed Commercial/Residential (The Madison) 

West C7 – Central Business District Institutional (Kelowna Library Branch) 

Subject Property Map: 1383 Ellis Street 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C7 ZONE REQUIREMENTS EXISTING BUILDING 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 200 m2 699 m2 

Lot Width 6 m 15.24 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 45.94 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 9.0 FAR 1.0 FAR 

Height 44 m Approx. 6.1 m 

Front Yard 0 m 0 m 

Side Yard (south) 0 m 0 m 

Side Yard (north) 0 m 0 m 

Rear Yard 0 m 0 m 

7



Z13-0013 – Page 4 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table Cont. 

CRITERIA C7 ZONE REQUIREMENTS EXISTING BUILDING 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 9 spaces 9 spaces (secured off-site) 

Bicycle Parking 2 Class I / 4 Class II  Provided 

Loading Space 28 m2 Provided  

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 5 - Development Process  

Policy 4 – Downtown Development. Support rezoning to C7 use in the downtown Urban 
Centre area only where properties are surrounded on a minimum of 3 sides by existing C7 
zoning. The intent of this policy is to support intensification within the existing core areas 
of the Downtown.  

6.0   Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:   March 11, 2013  

Applicant Hosted Public Information Session: April 30, 2013 (See attached Summary) 

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, A/General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Photos 
Development Engineering Requirements 
Applicant’s Summary - Public Information Session 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 28, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (JM) 

Application: LUC13-0001 Owner: 
Alan Dadswell, Marguerite 
Alston 

Address: 381 Okaview Road Applicant: Don Bouwman 

Subject: Land Use Contract Discharge   

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR1 – Rural Residential 1 

Land Use Contract: 77-1002 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Application No. LUC13-0001 to discharge Land Use Contract No. 77-1002 from Lot B, 
Section 23, Township 28, SDYD, Plan KAP47783, located at 381 Okaview Road, Kelowna, BC, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT LUC13-0001 be forwarded to be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a proposal to discharge the existing Land Use Contract over the subject property in 
order to permit the development of an accessory building. 

3.0 Land Use Management   

Land Use Management staff are supportive of the proposed land use contract discharge over the 
subject property. Land use contracts are an antiquated method of regulating land use that 
contribute to greater confusion in the administration of land use regulation and development 
activity. Council Policy No. 282 “Strategy for the Elimination of Remaining Land Use Contracts” 
directs staff, where practical, to seek to eliminate land use contracts. In this instance, the land 
owner was amenable to this strategy. 

It is noteworthy that the subject property will be rendered lawfully non-conforming in lot area 
through this discharge, as the minimum lot area of the RR1 – Rural Residential 1 zone is 8,000m2. 

15



LUC13-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

This will not negatively impact the land owner, as the lot was not able to be subdivided under 
the minimum lot area regulations of the land use contract.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Land Use Contract was a tool that entered into use in the early 1970’s before it was 
eliminated in 1978. The purpose of the tool was to allow local governments to arrive at 
agreements with specific developers to grant development rights over and above what was 
allowed under current zoning. This was typically done in exchange for commitments by 
developers to help finance the infrastructure costs of development. 

In 1978, the City entered into a Land Use Contract (LUC #77-1002) to allow the development of a 
large portion of the Okaview Road area. At that time, the Kelowna Mission area had recently 
been incorporated into the City, and a mass rezoning of lands had taken place, severely limiting 
development potential. The developer at the time used the Land Use Contract tool to arrive at a 
customized agreement with the City to develop the lands in excess of what was permitted under 
zoning at that time. 

Under LUC #77-1002, the subject property was governed under the provisions of the A-4 (Rural 
Residential) zone of Zoning Bylaw No. 4500, 1976. Once an LUC is discharged, the underlying 
zoning of a property applies. In this case, the underlying zoning is RR1 – Rural Residential 1.  

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking to develop a large garage structure at the rear of the subject property in 
order to accommodate a recreational vehicle (RV) and one or more classic cars. There is an 
existing two car garage attached to the principal dwelling. To access this new garage the existing 
driveway at the front yard will be continued through the side yard to the rear of the property.  

The proposed garage is approximately 151.4m2 in area and contains two bays: one bay with a 
3.0m ceiling to accommodate up to two standard vehicles in tandem, and one bay with a 4.9m 
ceiling to accommodate the recreational vehicle. The structure is one storey with a height of 
5.3m. 

The garage proposed is taller than what is permitted within the current LUC. As a result, the 
applicant is proposing to discharge the LUC in favour of the underlying RR1 zoning. However, it 
should be noted that the proposal also triggers two (2) variances to the underlying RR1 zone (see 
Section 4.4), which will be brought forward for Council consideration should this LUC discharge 
be approved. 

The applicant has canvassed surrounding land owners within a 50m radius of the subject 
property. All but three (3) have signed in support of the project. The remaining three were either 
not available or vacant. In addition, the three properties that were not able to sign in favour of 
the proposal are well below the grade of the subject property and the project is not visible from 
their lots. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is situated on the south side of Okaview Road, approximately 185m west of 
its intersection with Stellar Drive. The lot is 1,936m2 in area and is zoned RR1 – Rural Residential 
1 in the Zoning Bylaw, but is subject to a Land Use Contract (LUC#77-1002). The parcel under 
consideration is serviced by City of Kelowna water and sanitary services, and is located within 
the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

16



LUC13-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

Surrounding development is characterized by large lot, rural residential development. 
Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Large lot, rural residential housing  

East 
RR1 – Rural Residential 1, RR2 – Rural 
Residential 2 

Large lot, rural residential housing 

South 
RR1 – Rural Residential 1, RU1 – Large Lot 
Housing 

Large lot, rural residential housing 

West RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Large lot, rural residential housing 

 

Subject Property Map: 381 Okaview Road 
 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RR1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 8,000 m2 1,936 m2 

Lot Width 40 m variable 

Lot Depth 30 m 36.55 m 

Development Regulations 
Height (accessory bldgs) 6.0 m 5.37 m 

Front Yard 6.0 m exceeds 

Side Yard (west) 3.0 m 1.5 m 

17



LUC13-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

Side Yard (east) 3.0 m exceeds 

Rear Yard (accessory bldgs) 3.0 m 3.0 m 

Site Coverage 10% 21.4% 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 5 

 Indicates a requested variance to the minimum side yard setback from 3.0m required to 1.5m proposed.  

Indicates a requested variance to the maximum site coverage from 10% required to 21.4% proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The subject property is deisngated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official 
Community Plan. 

5.2 Council Policy No. 282: “Strategy for Elimination of Remaining Land Use Contracts” 

“…That the City of Kelowna initiate proceedings to discharge Land Use Contracts that have 
provisions enabling the City to unilaterally discharge the contracts subject to consultation with 
affected owners of the land and subject to prior approval by Council with regard to affected 
contracts…” 

6.0 Technical Comments  

To be addressed in the associated Development Variance Permit application (DVP13-0069), which 
will be brought forward for Council consideration, should this LUC be successfully discharged.  

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: May 10, 2013  
 
Updated Drawings Received:  May 23, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
James Moore, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Urban Land Use Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting GM of Community Sustainability 
 
Attachments:   
Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Excerpts from LUC77-1002 

18



19



20



21



22



23



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 5, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AR) 

Application: Z13-0006 & OCP13-0005 Owners:  

Raisanen Construction Ltd. (Inc. No. 
135257)        

PC Urban (Brandt’s Creek) Holdings 
Corp. (Inc. No. BC0933576) 

Address: 
1982 Kane Road                     
1970-1974 Kane Road 

Applicant: Fred Marin 

Subject: Rezoning & Official Community Plan Amendment Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: 
MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Proposed OCP Designation: 

 
COMM - Commercial 
MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: 

C3 – Community Commercial 
RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0005 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of portions of Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4043, located at 1982 Kane 
Road, Kelowna, BC from the MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) and MRM – Multiple 
Unit Residential (Medium Density) designations to the COMM – Commercial, MRL – Multiple Unit 
Residential (Low Density), and MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) designations, as 
shown on Map “A1” attached to the Report of Land Use Management Department dated June 5, 
2013, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0005 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of a portion of Lot C, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan EPP18422, located at 

24



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 2 

 
 

1970-1974 Kane Road, Kelowna, BC from the MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 
designation to the COMM – Commercial designations as shown on Map “A2” attached to the 
Report of Land Use Management Department dated June 5, 2013, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0006 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of portions of Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 4043, located at 1982 Kane Road, Kelowna, BC from the A1 – Agricultural 1 zone to the C3 – 
Community Commercial, RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing, RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, and 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing zones, as shown on Map “B1” attached to the Report of 
the Land Use Management Department dated June 5, 2013, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0006 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a portion of Lot C, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan EPP18422, located at 1970-1974 Kane Road, Kelowna, BC from the RM5 – Medium Density 
Multiple Housing zone to the C3 – Community Commercial zone, as shown on Map “B2” attached 
to the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated June 5, 2013, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the applicant’s April 11, 2013 Public Information Session to be 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined 
in the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated June 5, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaws and the Zone Amending Bylaws 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 4043 (1982 Kane Road) be considered in conjunction with Council’s consideration of a 
Development Permit on the subject property; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 4043 (1982 Kane Road) be considered subsequent to the issuance of a Preliminary Layout 
Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 4043 (1982 Kane Road) be considered following registration of a mutual access agreement 
for access over Lot C, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan EPP18422 (1970-1974 Kane Road) and 
Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4043 (1982 Kane Road) in favour of each lot, and a 
cross-parking and loading agreement between Lot C, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 
EPP18422 (1970-1974 Kane Road) and Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 4043 (1982 
Kane Road) in favour of each lot, to the satisfaction of the City of Kelowna, on the titles of both 
Lots C and 1 in the Land Titles Office; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 4043 (1982 Kane Road) be considered subsequent to the requirements of the Development 
Engineering Branch and Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District being completed to their 
satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and 
the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot C, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan EPP18422 (1970-1974 
Kane Road) be considered separately from final adoption of the Official Community Plan Bylaw 

25



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 3 

 
 

Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw for Lot 1, Section 33, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 
4043 (1982 Kane Road). 

2.0 Purpose  

This application seeks to rezone the subject lands at 1982 Kane Road from the A1 – Agricultural 
zone to the C3 – Community Commercial, RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing, RM3 – Low Density 
Multiple Housing, and RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing zones, to facilitate Phase 2 of the 
existing Brandt’s Creek Crossing retail shopping centre and future multi-family development. The 
proposed zoning requires amendments to the existing Official Community Plan (OCP) future land 
use designations, including expansion of the existing COMM - Commercial and MRM - Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) designations. 
 
In conjunction with the subject applications, a minor correction to the zoning and OCP future 
land use designation on the west adjacent property at 1970-1974 Kane Road (Brandt’s Creek 
Crossing – Phase 1) is proposed, to rezone a small portion of the northeast corner of the property 
from the RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing zone to C3 – Community Commercial, and to 
amend the future land use designation from MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) to 
COMM – Commercial, consistent with the balance of the property.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

According to the Kelowna 2030 OCP, commercial uses and increased residential density are 
encouraged within Village Centres, in the interest of supporting viable, pedestrian-oriented 
centres. The proposed extension of the COMM - Commercial future land use designation along 
Kane Road eastwards to Valley Road, to accommodate Phase 2 of the Brandt’s Creek Crossing 
retail shopping centre, and the relative shift of the MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium 
Density) designation northwards, is generally consistent with the principles of the OCP.  

Within the proposed Commercial designation, the C3 - Community Commercial zone is considered 
to be the most appropriate for this location within the Glenmore Valley Village Centre, and is 
consistent with existing commercial lands within the Centre. Whereas Urban Centres are planned 
as strongly urbanized environments supported by high residential density, Village Centres are 
smaller scale areas, providing convenience commercial for area residents, typically focused along 
one or two arterial roads. Per the Zoning Bylaw, the C3 zone provides for “…the development of 
community commercial centres to serve more than one neighbourhood.” 

As proposed, the overall potential for residential development on the subject parcel is generally 
consistent with that afforded under the present OCP land use designations. The proposed RM5 - 
Medium Density Multiple Housing zone and the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone are consistent 
with the residential density expectations of the MRM and MRL future land use designations, 
respectively, and provide for a transition of building form approaching the single family 
neighbourhood to the north of the subject site. Unfortunately, achievement of the 
comprehensive vision for the area north of Kane Road between Drysdale Boulevard and Valley 
Road is somewhat compromised by the unwillingness for coordinated development to proceed on 
the remnant parcel at 368 Valley Road.  

Proposed Commercial Retail Development 

In future design work, consideration should be given to the comprehensive design of development 
on the proposed commercial parcel relative to the existing Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1 
commercial development on the west adjacent site at 1970-1974 Kane Road ― in terms of 

26



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 4 

 
 

coordinated design, layout, access and circulation ― such that the two sites appear and function 
as one comprehensive commercial development.   

A strong design interface with Kane Road should be maintained, with the continuation of building 
frontage adjacent to Kane Road in alignment with the existing commercial retail building on the 
west adjacent site, refined building elevations with glazing and building accesses, and enhanced 
landscaping. The proposed development should also provide a strongly articulated design 
response to the corner condition at Kane Road and Valley Road, through architectural form and 
treatment, landscaping, and public realm enhancements. Additionally, there should be a well 
considered treatment along the east property line, as the site is clearly visible from Valley Road 
and the relative portion of adjacent intervening property at 368 Valley Road is unlikely to 
develop given its relatively narrow dimension (see Subject Property Map on p.7).  

In order for Village Centres to succeed, there needs to be integrated design for pedestrian 
circulation, safety, and comfort. As such, the proposed design should demonstrate a clear plan 
for separated, safe and comfortable pedestrian access and circulation, and coordinate seamlessly 
with the west adjacent commercial retail site. It should also be noted that there is a Zoning 
Bylaw requirement for a minimum of 2 m2 of landscaped island per required parking space, as 
well as an OCP policy of one shade tree for every 4 parking spaces.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In January 2012, Council approved Zoning and OCP Amendment applications, subject to 
conditions, for the west adjacent property, to facilitate the construction of a retail shopping 
centre at 1970-1974 Kane Road (present Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1) and future multi-
family residential development at 333 Drysdale Boulevard and 300 Glen Park Drive. In March 
2012, Council subsequently approved Development and Development Variance Permit 
applications for the retail shopping centre at 1970-1974 Kane Road.  

4.2 Project Description 

1982 Kane Road 

The applicant has submitted Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment, Rezoning and 
Subdivision applications to extend the existing commercial and multi-family residential land uses 
on the west adjacent properties to the subject site, to enable:  

 the continuation of commercial development on the north side of Kane Road to Valley 
Road, adjacent to the existing Brandt’s Creek Crossing retail development;  

 the completion of the final remaining portion of Drysdale Boulevard north to Glen Park 
Drive; and 

 the reconfiguration of the subject lands relative to the west adjacent lands at 
333 Drysdale Boulevard, so that the proposed multi-family residential parcels can be 
comprehensively developed, with access from Drysdale Boulevard (see attached 
Conceptual Site Plan). 

Specifically, the Rezoning application proposes to rezone the subject property from the existing 
A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the C3 – Community Commercial, RM5 – Medium Density Multiple 
Housing, RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, and RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing zones, consistent 
with Map ‘B1’ attached.  

27



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 5 

 
 

Consistent with the existing commercial properties in the Glenmore Valley Village Centre, 
C3 zoning is proposed along the Kane Road frontage, at the south end of the subject parcel. The 
proposed C3 zoning would facilitate the development of community commercial uses adjacent to 
the existing Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1 retail shopping centre site to the west at 1970-
1974 Kane Road, and the completion of commercial development along the north side of Kane 
Road to Valley Road. The proposed commercial parcel would be approximately 5,360 m2 in area 
and subdivided from the remainder of the subject development parcel. The conceptual site plan 
anticipates two retail buildings, with an approximate area of 1,635 m2. It is anticipated that the 
proposed commercial parcel will be developed as Phase 2 of the existing Brandt’s Creek Crossing 
retail shopping centre on the west adjacent property at 1970-1974 Kane Road.  

The subject property owner, Raisanen Construction Ltd., has made demonstrated efforts to 
coordinate with the east adjacent property owner at 368 Valley Road, so that the proposed 
commercial site might extend fully to Valley Road; however, the property owner of this remnant 
parcel has not expressed an interest in moving ahead with development at this time. 

The proposed RM5 and RM3 zone areas, north of the proposed C3 zone area, reflect the future 
alignment of Drysdale Boulevard relative to the existing RM5 and RM3 zoning on the west 
adjacent parcels at 333 Drysdale Boulevard and 300 Glen Park Drive, and would typically 
facilitate condominium and/or townhouse development. The proposed RM1 zoning at the far 
north end of the subject property, at Drysdale Boulevard and Glen Park Drive, would serve as a 
transition to the existing single-family neighbourhood, and permits a maximum of four dwelling 
units in a residential building. 

While the zoning boundaries proposed are generally congruent with the OCP, they necessitate an 
amendment to the OCP to change the Future Land Use Designations for the subject property, 
consistent with Map ‘A1’ attached. The existing Commercial designation would be expanded to 
the east property boundary of the subject site, while the existing MRM and MRL designations 
would be updated to consider the Drysdale Boulevard alignment and existing land use 
designations on the west adjacent lands.  

The applicant has provided a conceptual site plan that considers both the commercial 
development proposed at the south end of the subject property, and multi-family development 
to the north. Development Permit applications, however, have not yet been submitted in 
conjunction with the rezoning application. Should Council give favourable consideration to the 
rezoning application, Development Permit applications will be required for the commercial 
component of the proposal, as well as for the proposed RM1 component, prior to final adoption of 
the zone amending bylaw for the subject property. The proposed corresponding subdivision 
application would see the creation of two new multi-family residential parcels (in combination 
with the west adjacent multi-family lands at 333 Drysdale Boulevard) with access from Drysdale 
Boulevard. At present, it is anticipated that the development of multi-family residential on the 
proposed parcels will be pursued at a future date through a separate Development Permit 
process. The OCP Comprehensive Design Guidelines will apply to future commercial and multi-
family development on the site. 

Proposed Future Multi-Family Residential Development 

When plans for the multi-family sites advance ― for townhouse and/or apartment development ― 
design consideration should be given to creating an effective, pedestrian-oriented street edge, 
with primary building elevations and entrances for ground-level units fronting onto public street.    

28



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 6 

 
 

In conjunction with the Subdivision application, vehicular access for the proposed RM5 zoned 
parcels will be sought from Drysdale Boulevard. Based on the proposed concept plan, staff would 
seek consolidated access for “Proposed Lot 2” with “Proposed Lot 3” on Drysdale Boulevard. 
Provision of access for the proposed multi-family residential complex from the existing 
commercial service lane is not suitable and would result in significant vehicular conflicts. 
Additionally, the layout and design of the proposed RM5 site should aim to minimize the effects 
of the south adjacent commercial site (Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1) on the enjoyment of 
proposed residential units, given that loading activities for the existing grocery store occur along 
the shared property boundary. The proposed new commercial development should ensure 
appropriate setbacks and landscaping to the adjacent residential parcels.  

1970-1974 Kane Road 

In conjunction with the subject applications, a minor correction to the zoning and OCP future 
land use designation on the west adjacent property at 1970-1974 Kane Road (Brandt’s Creek 
Crossing – Phase 1) is also proposed, to rezone a small portion of the northeast corner of the 
property from the RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing zone to C3 – Community Commercial, 
and to amend the future land use designation from MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium 
Density) to COMM – Commercial, consistent with the balance of the property, and as reflected on 
Maps “A2” and “B2”. These amendments are consistent with the intent of the original Zoning and 
OCP Amendment applications approved in January 2012. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject 1.98 ha property is located in the Glenmore Valley Village Centre, with primary 
frontage on Kane Road. The surrounding area is a mix of Village Centre commercial, existing and 
future multi-family development, and single-family housing. Within a 5 minute walking distance 
(400 m) of the site are Whitman Glen Park, Sutton Glen Park, Brandt’s Creek Linear Park, and the 
future Glenmore Recreation Park. Nearby transit routes run along Kane Road and Valley Road. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU2 – Medium Lot Housing Single family housing 

East 
A1 – Agriculture 1 
RR3 – Rural Residential 3 

Undeveloped rural property   
(future multi-family) 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 
Undeveloped rural property   
(future multi-family) 

West 
C3 – Community Commercial 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Brandt’s Creek Crossing – Phase 1 
retail shopping centre 
Vacant (future multi-family) 
Vacant (future multi-family) 

 

  

29



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 7 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1982 Kane Road 

 

5.0   Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Staff recommends that the applicant’s April 11th, 2013 Public Information Session be considered 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, and that 
the process is sufficiently early and does not need to be further ongoing in this case. 
Furthermore, additional consultation with the Regional District of Central Okanagan, other 
boards, councils or agencies listed in Section 879, is not required in this case. 
 
Staff have reviewed this application and it may move forward without affecting either the City’s 
Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan.  

Chapter 5 - Development Process  

Policy 5.2.3 – Complete Suburbs. Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs (see Map 5.1 - 
Urban Core Area), in accordance with “Smart Growth” principles to ensure complete 
communities. Uses that should be present in all areas of the City (consistent with Map 4.1 - 
Future Land Use Map), at appropriate locations, include: commercial, institutional, and all types 
of residential uses (including affordable and special needs housing) at densities appropriate to 
their context. Building heights in excess of four storeys will not be supported within the suburban 
areas, unless provided for by zoning existing prior to adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500. 

Policy 5.3.2 - Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of 
existing infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done 
by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 

30



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 8 

 
 

development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Policy 5.10.1 - Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and private 
sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of frequently 
used connections and informal pedestrian routes. With new developments, require dedication of 
on-site walking and cycling paths where necessary to provide links to adjacent parks, schools, 
transit stops, recreation facilities, employment nodes, cul-de-sacs and large activity areas. 

Policy 5.40.1 - Evaluation Checklist (OCP Amendment Applications)  

Evaluate development applications that require an OCP amendment on the basis of the extent to 
which they comply with underlying OCP objectives, including the following: 

• Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater than 30%? – 
Yes. 

• Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP Map 4.1 
and 5.2)? – Yes. 

• Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, institutional, and/or 
recreational uses within individual buildings or larger development projects? – Yes. The overall 
site calls for a mix of commercial and multi-family uses. 

• Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? – No. The site is located within a 
Village Centre. 

• Does the proposed development increase the supply of affordable (as defined in the OCP) 
apartments or townhouses? No affordable housing component is contemplated at this time. 

• Is the property serviced with water and City sanitary sewer at the time of application? – Yes. 

• Could the proposed project be built at no financial cost to the City? (This should consider 
operational and maintenance costs.) – Yes. 

• Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, especially 
during peak hours? – Yes. The increased commercial space would create a greater critical mass 
in the Glenmore area, limiting automobile trips to other areas.  

• Is there transit service within 400 metres of non-residential projects or major employment 
generators (50+ employees)? – Yes. 

• Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, urbanized land? – 
Yes. 

• Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open space than 
would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including required open space 
dedications or non-developable areas)? – No. 

• Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (see Map 5.4) that already have 
the required OCP designation? – Yes. The other commercially designated sites in the Glenmore 
Valley Village Centre are already developed, with the exception of a modest A1 zoned site on 
Glenmore Road. 

• Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic, etc.) on adjoining properties 
where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? – Yes. Adjoining 
properties to the east and west are designated and/or zoned for multi-family development. 

31



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 9 

 
 

• Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? – Yes. 

• If the project goes ahead, would surrounding property owners be likely to develop their 
properties as per OCP Future Land Use and other City policy provisions? The proposed 
development would not impede surrounding property owners from developing as per OCP 
Future Land Use and other City policy provisions, with the exception of the remnant lot to the 
east at 368 Valley Road, which is presently not part of the subject land assembly. 

• Would the additional density or new land use designation enhance the surrounding 
neighbourhood in a way that the current land use designation does not? The proposal would 
provide for additional commercial opportunities for surrounding residents. 

• Could the project be supported without over-burdening existing park and other community 
resources or threatening the viability of existing neighbourhood resources? – Yes. Approximately 
the same about of residential development potential over the entire site remains under the 
proposed future land use designations. 

 
Chapter 7 - Infrastructure 

Policy 7.7.2 – Ease of Movement. Ensure that pedestrians, bicyclists and transit users can move 
about pleasantly and conveniently and that they are not unduly impeded in their movements by 
provisions for enhanced automobile mobility.  
 
Policy 7.10.2 – Traffic Calming. At rezoning, require that all local and minor collector roads be 
traffic calmed at developer’s cost if they are connected to a new development generating more 
than 10 trips during the peak hour. Priority should be given to traffic calming measures on roads 
near elderly and child-oriented spaces and facilities. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum 

6.2 Glenmore-Ellison Irrigation District 

See attached Memorandum 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Application received:     February 4, 2013  

Applicant Hosted Public Information Session: April 11, 2013 (see attached Summary) 

Supplementary materials received:   May 31, 2013 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Land Use Planner  
 
  

32



OCP11-0005 / Z13-0006 – Page 10 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Maps A1 & B1  
Maps A2 & B2 
Subject Property Map 
Conceptual Site Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District Memorandum 
Applicant’s Summary - Public Information Session 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 

Date: June 5, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (PMc) 

Application: Z12-0006 Owner: 
Finnasha Holdings Corp. Inc. 
No. BC0905417 

Address: 587-589 Lawrence Ave Applicant: 
Rising Tide Consultants Ltd. 
For DV8 Entertainment Inc. 

Subject: Rezoning 

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Commercial / Residential) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

Proposed Zone: C7lp – Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z12-0006 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 6, DL 139, O.D.Y.D., Plan 2536, located on 578-589 
Lawrence Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the C7 – Central Business zone to the C7 lp – Central 
Business (Liquor Primary) zone, be considered by Council. 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration. 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with 
Council’s consideration of a Liquor License Application for the subject property. 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property with the “Liquor Primary” designation 
to allow for a new liquor primary license with a patron capacity proposed at 250 people.   

3.0 Land Use Management 

This application is for a new liquor primary license (Large Establishment) for the subject 
property.  The new license is to accommodate a full service entertainment venue that will 
provide both a kitchen and bar (featuring local microbreweries and local wineries) in addition to 
a social lounge that will be marketed as “The Mixing Room”.  The goal is to create an 

49



Z12-0006 – Page 2 

 
 

entertainment venue that “will be a premier go to destination for diners and entertainment 
seekers of all ages throughout the Okanagan…. Our vision is to provide a safe, relaxed 
atmosphere where adults 25+ can come to enjoy great food, a one of a kind dining experience, 
award winning wines and a variety of entertainment options under one roof”.  With this 
objective, multiple components of the Downtown Plan could be achieved by adding to 
entertainment options to residents and visitors alike, creating vibrancy to this block of Lawrence 
with both day and evening social activities, and establishing a venue that caters to a wide 
demographic profile.  The applicant provided a list of support from adjacent land owners/tenants 
in the immediate area and general consensus was that this was an exciting proposal that will 
rejuvenate this area and provide positive activity to this Downtown block. 
 
Council Policy #359 provides guidance related to the establishment of Liquor Primary 
establishments.  The proposal is consistent with the Council Policy, given that the location is 
within the Downtown core, and is not located within 250m of another large liquor primary 
establishment.  Notably, the nearest liquor primary establishment (Blue Gator) is located 288m 
away, while Tonics Pub is located within 325m.  For the above reasons, Staff are supportive of 
this new entertainment establishment to revitalize this area of the Downtown and add to the 
entertainment options that serve to deliver on components of realizing the Downtown Plan.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant originally made application for rezoning and liquor licensing on February 12, 2012.  
However, owing to a company restructuring, the applicant requested that the application be held 
in abeyance till these issues were sorted out.  The corporate structure reorganization concluded 
in April 2013 and the applicant wishes to proceed with this application with a new consultant 
team involved. 

4.2 Project Description 

The subject property is developed with a single storey commercial building.  The C7 – Central 
Business Commercial zone requires provision of parking at a rate of 1.3 stall per 100m² GFA, 
regardless of the use category of the building.  There is no increase in building area proposed as 
part of this application.  Therefore the existing parking provided on the subject property is 
deemed adequate from a zoning bylaw perspective.  To date, there has been no mention of 
façade improvements to update the exterior of the building.   
 
The applicant is proposing to develop two licensed establishments on the subject property; a 204 
m² (2,200sf) kitchen and bar, operated as a coffee shop with a pub featuring micro breweries and 
local wineries.  Additionally, a 297 m² (3,200sf) Social Lounge catering to a more mature, upscale 
clientele will also be offered.  The intent is to provide a combination of beverage, dining and 
entertainment options, operating as one facility called the “Mixing Room”.  The proposal includes 
a Kitchen and Bar area with a capacity of 120 persons, while the lounge area of a 130 persons, 
for a total capacity of 250 patrons.  The lounge area includes a dance floor. 

Capacity 

Kitchen and Bar area 120 patrons 

Social Lounge area 130 patrons 

Total proposed Capacity 250 Patrons 

50



Z12-0006 – Page 3 

 
 

 

Hours of Operation requested 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

11:00 am 11:00 am 11:00 am 11:00 am 11:00 am 11:00 am 11:00 am 

2:00 am 2:00 am 2:00 am 2:00 am 2:00 am 2:00 am 2:00 am 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is surrounded by a mix of commercial and retail uses.  See attached map for 
existing community services and liquor primary locations. 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business Commercial Parking lot (Town Centre Mall) 

East C7 – Central Business Commercial Retail / Commercial uses 

South C7 – Central Business Commercial Retail / Commercial uses 

West C7 – Central Business Commercial Retail / Commercial uses 

Subject Property Map:         587-589 Lawrence Ave. 
 

  
 
 
4.4  Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy & Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Large establishments (with person capacity greater than 249 persons): 
o Should only be located within an Urban Centre. (Meets this criteria) 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Town Centre Mall 

First United Church 

Brigadier Angle Armoury 

Down Town Youth Centre, 
Boys and Girls Club 

51



Z12-0006 – Page 4 

 
 

o Should be located a minimum of 250m from another Large establishment. 
(Satisfied) 

o Should be located a minimum of 100m from a Medium establishment. (Satisfied) 
o Should not be located beside a Small establishment. (Satisfied) 

 Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments 
which are less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, 
and Food Primary establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment 
Endorsement) to add a mix of entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting 
potential community impacts via license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc) 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

Development Engineering has the following comments and requirements associated with 
this application. The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in this report will 
be a requirement of this development. 
 
1. Domestic Water and Fire Protection 

(a) The developer’s consulting mechanical engineer will determine the 
domestic and fire protection requirements of this proposed development 
and establish hydrant requirements and service needs. Only one service will 
be permitted for this subject property. The applicant, at his cost, will 
arrange for the disconnection and replacement of the existing 19mm 
diameter service with a larger service. The estimated cost of this 
construction for bonding purposes is $14,000.00 

 
(b) A water meter is mandatory for this development and must be installed 

inside the building on the water service inlet as required by the City 
Plumbing Regulation and Water Regulation bylaws. The developer or 
building contractor must purchase the meter from the City at the time of 
application for a building permit from the Inspection Services Department, 
and prepare the meter setter at his cost.   

 
2. Sanitary Sewer 

(a) The developer’s consulting civil / mechanical engineer will determine the 
requirements of this proposed development and establish the required 
service needs. The development site is presently serviced with a 100mm-
diameter sanitary service. The City has a tentative schedule to commence 
with the replacement of the existing sanitary main in 2013. Service 
upgrades prior to the main replacement will be at the developer’s cost and 
additional bonding will apply. 

 
3. Storm Drainage 

(a) The development site is presently serviced with a 150mm-diameter storm 
service which will be adequate for this application. 

 
4. Road Improvements 
 

Lawrence Avenue 
(a) Lawrence Avenue fronting this development site is urbanized. The 

decommissioning of existing services and installation of new services will 

52



Z12-0006 – Page 5 

 
 

require road cuts. The extent of pavement and boulevard restoration will 
be at the discretion of the City Development Engineer. 

 
 Public Lane 

The lane fronting this development is urbanised to a paved standard. No 
improvements are anticipated for this application. 
 

5. Electric Power and Telecommunication Services 
This development is located within an urban centre. The electrical and 
telecommunication services to this building as well as the distribution wiring must 
be installed in an underground duct system, and the building must be connected by 
underground ducting.  It is the developer’s responsibility to make a servicing 
application with the respective electric power, telephone and cable transmission 
companies to arrange for these services which would be at the applicant’s cost 
 

6. Engineering 
Road and utility construction design, construction supervision, and quality control 
supervision of all off-site and site services including on-site ground recharge 
drainage collection and disposal systems, must be performed by an approved 
consulting civil engineer.  Designs must be submitted to the City Engineering 
Department for review and marked “issued for construction” by the City Engineer 
before construction may begin. 
 

7. Bonding and Levy Summary 
 

(a) Bonding 
 

Service upgrades                $14,000.00  
 
Total Bonding       $14,000.00 

5.3 Bylaw Services 

No comment 

5.4 Fire Department 

Additional comments will be required at the building permit application. 

5.5 Interior Health Authority 

The applicant has contacted the Environmental Health Office concerning approval of the 
proposed food service establishment. 

5.6 R.C.M.P. 

The RCMP are not opposed to the application in principle. 
Because the applicant is undertaking renovations to accommodate his business plan, it 
would be beneficial to ensure some level of acoustic engineering is incorporated in the 
design plans to mitigate nose complaints as this area must not be restricted in any way 
from achieving it’s full development potential. 
The RCMP would also encourage design considerations to accept client queuing within the 
confines of the business rather than relying entirely on the public sidewalk.  Providing 
adequate lighting to the front end and rear of the building will also enhance public safety. 
 
Further comments to be provided with the accompanying Liquor License application. 

53



Z12-0006 – Page 6 

 
 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: Feb 12, 2012  
 
Date application placed on hold: April 2012 
 
Date new information received: April 24, 2013 
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting Director, Land Use Management 

Attachments:  

Location Map 
Executive Summary 
Neighbourhood Comments 
 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	Agenda
	3.1 Z13-0013 AR 1383 Ellis St - Council Report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 z13-0013 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 LUC13-0001 JM Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 luc13-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 Z13-0006 1982 Kane Rd - Council Report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 z13-0006 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.4 Z12-0006 Report to Council .docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.4 z12-0006 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda


